

Sec. 7.200. - Additional Area Regulations.

H. *Wireless communications facilities (WCF)*. The purpose of the WCF regulations is to encourage and promote wireless communications coverage for all areas of the city while minimizing the visual, environmental, and neighborhood impacts. ~~The preferred WCF locations include locations having the least amount of visual and neighborhood impact. More preferred locations include commercial and industrial areas, and less preferred locations include residential and school areas. The wireless communications service providers shall adhere to all applicable federal regulations, such as the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA). Locations may require an environmental assessment.~~

1. *WCF concealment and screening*. All WCF antennas, mounting hardware, and cabling shall be covered or painted to match the color and texture of the building, tower, or pole on which it is mounted. Equipment cabinets, service panels, and service connections shall be screened by solid walls, landscaping, or berms. Screening shall blend with or enhance the surrounding context in terms of scale, form, texture, materials, and color. WCF shall be concealed as much as possible by blending into the natural and/or physical environment. ~~All gates shall be opaque.~~
2. *WCF height*. The height of free-standing WCF shall be measured from natural **FINISHED** grade to the top of all appurtenances.
3. *WCF setbacks*. The setback of all WCF shall meet the yard development standards and step back requirements of the underlying zoning district, except **WHEN LOCATED WITHIN THE STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY, OR** as otherwise permitted herein.
4. ~~*WCF co-location*. All new monopoles or towers over forty (40) feet in height shall allow for co-location by other wireless communications service providers. The applicant shall demonstrate that the engineering of the monopole or tower and the placement of ground-mounted WCF will accommodate other providers' WCF. The owner of the tower or monopole and the property on which it is located must certify that the monopole or tower is available for use by another wireless communications service provider on a reasonable and non-discriminatory basis.~~
54. *WCF lighting*. Any exterior lighting for WCF shall be fully shielded, screened by the same screening surrounding the WCF, and located below the height of the screening.
6. ~~*WCF identification*. Each WCF shall be identified by a permanently installed plaque or marker, no larger than four (4) inches by six (6) inches, clearly identifying the wireless communications service provider's name, address, e-mail contact, and emergency phone number.~~
75. *Temporary WCF*. All temporary WCF shall be ~~limited to being~~ in conjunction with a special event, **WCF EQUIPMENT UPGRADE, RELOCATION OF AN EXISTING WCF** or be in response to an emergency or disaster as determined by the Zoning Administrator.
86. *WCF Types*. All WCF are classified as ~~Type 1, Type 2, Type 3, or Type 4~~ **TYPE A, TYPE B AND TYPE C** (except temporary WCF). WCF Types are in order of preference, with Type 1 **TYPE A** being the most preferable with the least number of impacts, and Type 4 **TYPE C** being the least preferable with the most number of impacts. Each Type has specific criteria, requirements, processes, and guidelines. ~~WCF user guidelines have been created to provide additional standards and expectations.~~

In the event of a conflict, the more restrictive Type shall apply.

A. ~~*Type 1 WCF*. Type 1 WCF have antennas and equipment cabinets that are fully concealed. Type 1 WCF have an expedited review process and are subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator, subject to Section 1.906.~~

1. ~~Type 1 WCF shall not include the following:~~

A. ~~WCF on lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling;~~

- ~~B. WCF within one hundred fifty (150) feet of a lot where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling;~~
- ~~C. WCF on school property (K-12); and~~
- ~~D. WCF within the recommended study boundary for the McDowell Sonoran Preserve as approved by city council.~~

~~2. Type 1 WCF shall only include the following:~~

- ~~A. The replacement of any existing WCF, if the replacement is smaller and/or more concealed than the original WCF, or there is no obvious visible change from the original WCF.~~
- ~~B. WCF on or within existing buildings, walls, and water tanks subject that antennas and equipment cabinets shall be fully concealed within or behind existing buildings, existing walls, and/or buried completely underground. All wall replacements shall match the existing colors and materials. Antenna and equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~
- ~~C. On existing or replaced traffic signal poles, limited only to pre-approved pole designs with all equipment cabinets buried underground.~~

~~BA. Type 2~~ **TYPE A** WCF. All **Type 2A** WCF shall blend with the surroundings and are subject to approval by the Zoning Administrator **OR DESIGNEE**, subject to Section 1.906.

1. **Type 2A WCF** shall not include the following:

- A. SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES AS DEFINED IN A.R.S. 9-591.**
- B. MICROCELL EQUIPMENT AS DEFINED BY A.R.S 9-584.**
- C. TYPE B OR C WCF**
- AD. NEW** WCF antennas on lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling, **EXCLUDING RANCH AND COMMERCIAL STABLE PROPERTIES;**
- BE. NEW** WCF antennas within one hundred fifty (150) feet of a lot where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling;
- GF. NEW** WCF on school property (K-12); and
- DG. NEW** WCF within the recommended study boundary for the McDowell Sonoran Preserve as approved by city council.

2. ~~Type 2~~ **TYPE A** WCF shall only include the following:

- A. MODIFICATIONS TO EXISTING WCF, INCLUDING MODIFICATIONS THAT QUALIFY AS ELIGIBLE FACILITIES PER SECTION 6409(a) OF THE MIDDLE-CLASS TAX RELIEF ACT AND JOB CREATION ACT OF 2012.**
- B. TEMPORARY WCF**
- AC.** WCF on or within buildings, walls, and water tanks subject to the following criteria:
 - ~~1. Does not include R1-zoned properties with visible changes;~~
 - 21.** Antennas shall be fully concealed or snug-mount;
 - 32.** Existing building heights shall not increase by more than fifteen (15) percent, and no increase in height of water tanks;

- ~~4. Existing rooftop appurtenances shall not be raised in height more than two (2) feet;~~
 53. New rooftop appurtenances shall comply with Section 7.100, shall be no more than ten (10) percent of the roof area, shall not exceed six-hundred (600) square feet, and shall not exceed ~~six (6)~~ **TEN (10)** feet in height; and
 64. Antenna and equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district.; ~~except as provided in 7.C below.~~
 75. Equipment cabinets:
 - A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, or buried underground;
 - B. Ground-mounted equipment cabinets shall not exceed eight (8) feet in height and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet (measured above ground); and
 - ~~C. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~
- BC. WCF co-located on existing monopoles and towers, EXISTING UTILITY POLES AND TOWERS AND EXISTING SPORTS FIELD LIGHT POLES, subject to the following criteria:**
1. ~~Monopole or towers~~ **Shall** not increase in height by more than ~~six (6)~~ **TEN (10)** feet **(INCLUDING THE ANTENNA)** and shall not exceed eighty (80) feet (including the antenna) in total height, **MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE;**
 2. **SHALL NOT EXCEED THE DIAMETER OF THE EXISTING POLE BY MORE THAN FORTY (40) PERCENT.**
 3. Antennas shall **NOT EXTEND MORE THAN TWO (2) FEET FROM FACE OF POLE TO BACK OF ANTENNA.** ~~be limited to snug mount, canister mount, and concealed antennas;~~
 - ~~4. Canister shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in diameter;~~
 - ~~5. There shall be no more than three (3) separate WCF on each monopole or tower;~~
 4. **SHALL NOT BE LOCATED ON UTILITY POLES/TOWERS PLANNED FOR REMOVAL BY THE CITY, UTILITY COMPANY, OR IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT;**
 5. **SHALL NOT BE LOCATED ON TWELVE-KILOVOLT (12-KV) UTILITY LINE POLES EXCEPT THOSE LOCATED ALONG COLLECTOR, ARTERIAL, OR HIGHER CLASSIFICATION STREETS;**
 6. All cables shall be located inside the ~~monopole or tower~~ **POLE AND CABLES FED INTO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNAS SHALL BE CONCEALED;**
 7. **ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE COLOR OF THE POLE, OR A COLOR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;**
 8. **ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;**
 79. Equipment cabinets:

- A. **LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY** ~~shall~~ be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, or buried underground **AND COMPLY WITH THE HEIGHT AND YARD REQUIREMENTS OF THE UNDERLYING DISTRICT:**
- ~~B. Equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, except as provided in E. below.~~
- ~~CB. Equipment cabinets located in ESL~~ **WITHIN THE** right-of-way ~~or ESL scenic corridor shall not exceed four (4)~~ **EIGHT (8) feet tall IN HEIGHT** above natural **FINISHED** grade, **AND ARE EXEMPT FROM YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.** ~~and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet measured above natural grade. Colors shall match corridor colors and no screenwall is required.~~ **EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SCREENED BY A WALL, FENCE, LANDSCAPING OR METHOD APPROVED BY THE ZONING ADMINSTRATOR OR DESIGNEE.**
- ~~D. Equipment cabinets located outside of ESL shall not exceed eight (8) feet in height, and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet (measured above ground); and~~
- ~~E. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~
- C. ~~WCF located on existing or replaced utility poles and towers, subject to the following criteria:~~
 - ~~1. WCF shall not be located on utility poles/towers planned for removal by the city, utility company, or improvement district;~~
 - ~~2. Antennas located on twelve-kilovolt (12-KV) utility line poles shall only be located along collector, arterial, or higher classification streets;~~
 - ~~3. Pole/tower size, diameter, and height shall be no larger/taller than would normally accommodate the necessary utility, as determined by the utility company;~~
 - ~~4. Antennas shall be limited to snug-mount, canister-mount, and concealed antennas;~~
 - ~~5. Canister shall not increase the pole height by more than six (6) feet, and shall not exceed eighty (80) feet in height;~~
 - ~~6. Canister shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in diameter;~~
 - ~~7. There shall be no more than three (3) separate WCF on each pole or tower;~~
 - ~~8. All cables shall be located inside the pole or concealed behind the tower structure; and~~
 - ~~9. Equipment cabinets:~~
 - ~~A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, or buried underground;~~
 - ~~B. Equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, except as provided in E. below;~~
 - ~~C. Equipment cabinets located in ESL right-of-way or ESL scenic corridor shall not be more than four (4) feet tall measured above natural grade and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet above natural grade. Colors shall match corridor colors and no screenwall is required.~~

~~D. Equipment cabinets located outside ESL right-of-way and ESL scenic corridor shall not exceed eight (8) feet in height and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet (measured above ground).~~

~~E. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~

~~D. WCF located on existing or replaced sports and field light poles, subject to the following criteria:~~

~~1. WCF located in the ESL district and within scenic corridors shall not be type 2;~~

~~2. Replacement poles or pole reinforcement shall not exceed the diameter of the existing pole by more than forty (40) percent;~~

~~3. Antennas shall be limited to snug-mount, canister-mount, and concealed antennas;~~

~~4. Canister shall not increase the pole height by more than six (6) feet, and the pole shall not exceed eighty (80) feet (including the antenna);~~

~~5. Canister shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in diameter;~~

~~6. There shall be no more than three (3) separate WCF on each pole;~~

~~7. All cables shall be located inside the pole, or match existing condition on nearby poles on same site; and~~

~~8. Equipment cabinets:~~

~~A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, or buried underground;~~

~~B. Shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, except as provided in D. below;~~

~~C. Shall not exceed eight (8) feet in height and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet (measured above ground); and~~

~~D. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~

~~ED. WCF located on traffic signal poles, subject to the following criteria:~~

~~1. New traffic signal poles shall be warranted by traffic volumes, as determined by the city;~~

~~2. Traffic signal pole diameter shall not exceed fourteen and one-half (14½) inches (city standard);~~

~~32. Antennas shall be limited to **SNUG-MOUNT**, canister-mount antennas, **OR CONCEALED ANTENNAS. CANISTER'S** shall be no more than eighteen (18) inches in diameter, and shall not increase the city standard traffic signal pole height by more than six (6) **TEN (10)** feet;~~

~~43. All cables shall be located inside the pole; and **AND CABLES FED INTO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNAS SHALL BE CONCEALED;**~~

~~54. **ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE COLOR OF THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE, OR A COLOR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;**~~

65. ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;

56. Equipment cabinets:

A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, pole mounted, or buried underground;

~~B. Shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, except as provided in E. below;~~

~~C. Equipment cabinets located in ESL right-of-way or ESL scenic corridor shall not exceed four (4) feet tall measured above natural grade and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet above natural grade. Colors shall match approved corridor colors and no screenwall is required.~~

~~DB. Equipment cabinets located outside ESL right-of-way and ESL scenic corridor shall not exceed eight (8) feet tall~~ **MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE AND ARE EXEMPT FROM YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.** ~~and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet (measured above ground). COLORS SHALL MATCH CORRIDOR COLORS AND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SCREENED BY A WALL, FENCE, LANDSCAPING OR METHOD APPROVED BY THE ZONING ADMINSTRATOR OR DESIGNEE.~~

~~E. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~

~~F. WCF located on freeway directional sign poles, subject to the following criteria:~~

~~1. Antennas shall be limited to snug-mount, canister-mount, and concealed antennas;~~

~~2. Canisters shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in diameter, and shall not increase the standard sign pole height by more than six (6) feet;~~

~~3. All cables shall be located inside the sign pole;~~

~~4. Equipment cabinets shall be screened behind walls, pole mounted, or buried underground; and~~

~~5. Colors shall match approved corridor colors.~~

E. WCF LOCATED ON EXISTING, NEW OR REPLACED STREET LIGHT POLES, PARKING LOT LIGHT POLES, AND STREET SIGN POLES, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

1. THE REPLACEMENT POLE AND WCF SHALL NOT INCREASE THE DIAMETER OF THE EXISTING POLE BY MORE THAN SIXTY (60) PERCENT, NOT TO EXCEED EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES TOTAL, OR INCREASE THE HEIGHT OF THE EXISTING POLE BY MORE THAN TEN (10) FEET;

2. ANTENNAS SHALL BE LIMITED TO SNUG-MOUNT OR CANISTER-MOUNT;

3. CANISTER'S SHALL BE NO MORE THAN EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES IN DIAMETER;

4. THERE SHALL BE NO MORE THAN TWO WCF PER POLE;

5. ALL CABLES SHALL BE LOCATED INSIDE THE POLE;

4. CABLES BOTTOM-FED INTO ANTENNA SHALL BE SCREENED BY A SHROUD ATTACHED TO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNA AND PAINTED TO MATCH ANTENNA.
 5. ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE COLOR OF THE POLE OR TOWER, OR A COLOR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;
 6. ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;
 7. EQUIPMENT CABINETS:
 - A. SHALL BE LOCATED INSIDE BUILDINGS, SCREENED BEHIND WALLS, POLE MOUNTED, OR BURIED UNDERGROUND. COLORS SHALL MATCH APPROVED CORRIDOR COLORS, OR AS DIRECTED BY ZONING ADMINSTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;
 - B. EQUIPMENT CABINET LOCATIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE HEIGHT AND YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT;
 - C. ALL EQUIPMENT CABINETS THAT ARE LOCATED WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OR COMPLETELY UNDERGROUND ARE EXEMPT FROM YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS;
 - D. EQUIPMENT CABINETS LOCATED IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL NOT EXCEED EIGHT (8) FEET IN HEIGHT, MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE.
- F. ALTERNATIVE CONCEALMENT WCF, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:
1. WCF SHALL COMPLY WITH THE HEIGHT REQUIREMENT AND YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT, UNLESS LOCATED WITHIN THE RIGHT-WAY, WHERE YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ARE EXEMPT.
 2. ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE LOCATED INSIDE THE ALTERNATIVE CONCEALMENT FACILITY OR PAINTED TO MATCH THE STRUCTURE IF ANTENNAS ARE VISIBLE.
 3. EQUIPMENT SHALL BE CONCEALED WITHIN THE STRUCTURE, SCREENED BEHIND WALLS, OR BURIED UNDERGROUND. COLORS SHALL MATCH APPROVED CORRIDOR COLORS, OR AS DIRECTED BY ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE.;
 4. EQUIPMENT CABINET LOCATIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE HEIGHT AND YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT;
 5. EQUIPMENT CABINETS LOCATED IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL NOT EXCEED EIGHT (8) FEET IN HEIGHT, MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE.
 6. ALL EQUIPMENT CABINETS THAT ARE LOCATED WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OR COMPLETELY UNDERGROUND ARE EXEMPT FROM YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.

~~G. WCF monopoles (new or replacement), not including monopoles with a flag, subject to the following criteria:~~

- ~~1. Limited to existing utility substations and limited to one (1) WCF monopole for every twenty thousand (20,000) square feet of substation;~~
- ~~2. Monopole and equipment cabinets shall be located in an existing utility substation enclosure that is fully screened by a solid wall (no WCF monopoles outside substation screen walls);~~
- ~~3. Monopole shall not exceed forty (40) feet in height, including antennas;~~
- ~~4. Monopole shall not exceed a diameter of fourteen (14) inches;~~
- ~~5. Antennas shall be limited to snug mount, canister mount, and concealed antennas;~~
- ~~6. Canister shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in diameter; and~~
- ~~7. Equipment cabinets shall not be visible from outside the wall.~~

~~H. WCF equipment cabinets on single family lots, subject to the following criteria:~~

- ~~1. Limited to equipment cabinets only (no antennas);~~
- ~~2. Lots shall be a minimum size of one (1) acre;~~
- ~~3. Equipment cabinets shall be buried, screened, and/or hidden;~~
- ~~4. Equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, except as provided in 6. below;~~
- ~~5. Equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from other lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single family dwelling; and~~
- ~~6. All equipment cabinets that are located completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~

CB. Type 3 TYPE B WCF. All Type 3 **B** WCF shall blend with the surrounding environment and require Development Review Board approval, subject to Section 1.900.

1. Type 3 **B** WCF shall not include the following:

A. TYPE A OR C WCF

AB. NEW WCF antennas on lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling, **EXCLUDING RANCH AND COMMERCIAL STABLE PROPERTIES;**

BC. NEW WCF within the recommended study boundary for the McDowell Sonoran Preserve as approved by city council.

D. SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES AS DEFINED IN A.R.S. 9-591.

E. MODIFICATIONS TO EXISTING WCF THAT QUALIFY AS ELIGIBLE FACILITIES PER SECTION 6409(a) OF THE MIDDLE-CLASS TAX RELIEF ACT AND JOB CREATION ACT OF 2012.

F. MICROCELL EQUIPMENT AS DEFINED BY A.R.S 9-584.

2. Type 3**B** WCF shall only include the following:

A. WCF on or within buildings, walls, and water tanks, subject to the following criteria.

1. WCF shall be designed to match the structure on which it is mounted;

2. WCF ANTENNAS SHALL BE SNUG MOUNTED AND PAINTED TO MATCH THE BUILDING, OR CONCEALED BEHIND THE BUILDING PARAPET

23. Equipment cabinets:

- A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, ~~pole mounted,~~ or buried underground;
- B. Shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, ~~except as provided in C. and D. below;~~
- ~~C. Equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling, and~~
- ~~D.~~ All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.

B. WCF co-located on existing monopoles and towers, EXISTING UTILITY POLES, OR EXISTING SPORTS FIELD LIGHT POLES subject to the following criteria:

- 1. ~~Monopole or tower shall~~ **SHALL** not increase in height by more than ~~twelve (12)~~ **FOURTEEN (14)** feet, and shall not exceed eighty (80) feet (including the antenna) in total height;
- 2. ~~Monopole shall~~ **SHALL** not increase the diameter of the existing ~~monopole~~**POLE** by more than sixty percent (60%);
- 3. Antennas shall not extend more than ~~two (2)~~ **FOUR (4)** feet ~~from the monopole or tower,~~ **FROM FACE OF POLE TO BACK OF ANTENNA;**
- 4. Limited to three (3) separate WCF on each **POLE.** ~~monopole or tower;~~
- 5. All cables shall be located inside the **POLE AND CABLES FED INTO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNAS SHALL BE CONCEALED;** ~~monopole or tower or within an encasement colored to match the monopole and located on a side with the least visual impact;~~
- 6. **ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE COLOR OF THE POLE, OR A COLOR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;**
- 7. **ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;**
- 8. **WCF SHALL NOT BE LOCATED ON UTILITY POLES/TOWERS PLANNED FOR REMOVAL BY THE CITY, UTILITY COMPANY, OR IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT;**
- 9. **ANTENNAS LOCATED ON TWELVE-KILOVOLT (12-KV) UTILITY LINE POLES SHALL ONLY BE LOCATED ALONG COLLECTOR, ARTERIAL, OR HIGHER CLASSIFICATION STREETS;**

610. Equipment cabinets:

- A. **LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL** ~~Shall~~ be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, ~~pole mounted,~~ or buried underground;
- B. ~~Equipment cabinets located~~ **LOCATED WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY** ~~in ESL right-of-way or ESL scenic corridor shall not be more than six (6)~~ **EIGHT (8) feet tall IN HEIGHT** measured above ~~natural~~ **FINISHED**

grade, **AND ARE EXEMPT FROM YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.** ~~and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet above natural grade. Colors shall match corridor colors and no screenwall is required~~ **EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SCREENED BY A WALL, FENCE, LANDSCAPING OR METHOD APPROVED BY ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE.**

- C. ~~Equipment cabinets located outside ~~ESL~~ THE right-of-way and ~~ESL~~ scenic corridor shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, except as provided in D. and E. below;~~
- D. ~~Equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling; and~~
- E. ~~All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~
- C. ~~WCF located on existing or replaced utility poles and towers, subject to the following criteria:~~
 - 1. ~~WCF shall not be located on poles/towers planned for removal by the city, utility company, or improvement district;~~
 - 2. ~~Antennas located on twelve kilovolt (12-KV) power line poles shall only be located along collector, arterial, or higher classification streets;~~
 - 3. ~~There shall be no more than three (3) separate WCF on each pole or tower;~~
 - 4. ~~Pole/tower size, diameter, and height shall be no larger/taller than would normally accommodate the necessary utility (not to exceed an eight (8) foot height increase);~~
 - 5. ~~Canister shall not increase the pole height by more than twelve (12) feet, not to exceed eighty (80) feet (including the antenna);~~
 - 6. ~~Canister shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in diameter;~~
 - 7. ~~On poles, antennas shall not extend more than two (2) feet from the pole;~~
 - 8. ~~On towers, antennas shall not extend more than two (2) feet from the tower or exceed the maximum width of the tower;~~
 - 9. ~~All cables shall be located inside the pole or within an encasement to hide all cables colored to match the pole/tower and located to a side with the least visual impact;~~
 - 10. ~~Equipment cabinets:~~
 - A. ~~Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, pole-mounted, or buried underground;~~
 - B. ~~Equipment cabinets located in ~~ESL~~ right-of-way or ~~ESL~~ scenic corridor shall not be more than six (6) feet tall measured above natural grade and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet above natural grade. Colors shall match approved corridor colors and no screenwall is required.~~
 - C. ~~Equipment cabinets located outside ~~ESL~~ right-of-way and ~~ESL~~ scenic corridor shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district;~~

- ~~D. Equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling; and~~
- ~~E. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~
- D. WCF located on existing or replaced sports and field light poles, subject to the following criteria:
 - 1. ~~There shall be no more than three (3) separate WCF on each pole;~~
 - 2. ~~Pole shall not exceed the diameter of the existing pole by sixty percent (60%);~~
 - 3. ~~Canister shall not increase the pole height by more than twelve (12) feet, not to exceed eighty (80) feet (including the antenna);~~
 - 4. ~~Canister shall not exceed eighteen (18) inches in diameter;~~
 - 5. ~~Antennas shall not extend more than two (2) feet from the pole;~~
 - 6. ~~All cables shall be located inside the pole or within an encasement to hide all cables colored to match the pole and oriented to a side with the least visual impact;~~
 - 7. ~~Equipment cabinets:~~
 - ~~A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, pole mounted, or buried underground;~~
 - ~~B. Equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district;~~
 - ~~C. Equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling; and~~
 - ~~D. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~
- E. WCF located on traffic signal poles, subject to the following criteria:
 - 1. New signal poles shall be warranted by traffic volumes, as determined by the city;
 - 2. Traffic signal poles and WCF ~~shall be no more than eighteen (18) inches in diameter and~~ shall not increase the city standard signal pole height by more than ~~six (6)~~ **TEN (10)** feet;
 - 3. Antennas shall be limited to snug-mount, canister-mount, and concealed antennas;
 - 4. All cables shall be located inside the pole **AND CABLES FED INTO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNAS SHALL BE CONCEALED;** ~~or within an encasement to hide all cables colored to match the pole and oriented to a side with the least visual impact;~~
 - 5. **ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE COLOR OF THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE, OR A COLOR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;**
 - 6. **ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;**

57. Equipment cabinets:
- A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, pole-mounted, or buried underground;
 - B. Equipment cabinets ~~located in ESL right-of-way or ESL scenic corridor~~ shall not be more than ~~six (6)~~ **EIGHT (8)** feet tall measured above ~~natural~~ **FINISHED** grade **AND ARE EXEMPT FROM YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.** ~~and one hundred fifty (150) cubic feet above natural grade. Colors shall match corridor colors and no screenwall is required~~ **AND EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SCREENED BY A WALL, FENCE, LANDSCAPING OR METHOD APPROVED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE.**
 - ~~C. Equipment cabinets located outside ESL right-of-way and ESL scenic corridor shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district;~~
 - ~~D. Equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling; and~~
 - ~~E. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~
- F. WCF located on existing or replaced street light poles, parking lot light poles, and street sign poles, subject to the following criteria:
- 1. The replacement pole and WCF shall not increase the diameter of the existing pole by more than sixty (60) percent, not to exceed eighteen (18) inches total, or increase the height of the existing pole by more than ~~six (6)~~ **TEN (10)** feet;
 - 2. Antennas shall be limited to snug-mount, canister-mount, and concealed antennas;
 - 3. **CANISTER SHALL BE NO MORE THAN EIGHTEEN (18) INCHES IN DIAMETER.**
 - ~~34.~~ All cables shall be located inside the pole or within an encasement to hide all cables colored to match the pole and oriented to a side with the least visual impact;
 - 5. **CABLES BOTTOM-FED INTO THE ANTENNA SHALL BE SCREENED BY A SHROUD ATTACHED TO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNA AND PAINTED TO MATCH THE ANTENNA;**
 - 6. **ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE COLOR OF THE POLE, OR A COLOR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;**
 - 7. **ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;**
48. Equipment cabinets:
- A. Shall be located inside buildings, screened behind walls, pole mounted, or buried underground;
 - B. Equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district;

~~C. Equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling; and~~

~~DC.~~ All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.

D. EQUIPMENT CABINETS LOCATED IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL NOT EXCEED EIGHT (8) FEET IN HEIGHT, MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE.

~~G. WCF located on freeway directional sign poles, subject to the following criteria:~~

- ~~1. Antennas shall be limited to snug mount, canister mount, and concealed antennas~~
- ~~2. Canisters shall be no more than eighteen (18) inches in diameter, and shall not increase the standard sign pole height by more than six (6) feet;~~
- ~~3. All cables shall be located inside the pole or encased in a sheath to match pole;~~
- ~~4. Equipment cabinets shall be screened behind walls, pole mounted, or buried underground; and~~
- ~~5. Colors shall match corridor colors.~~

H. Alternative concealment WCF, subject to the following criteria:

- ~~1. WCF shall comply with the height requirements of the underlying zoning district;~~

1. WCF SHALL COMPLY WITH THE HEIGHT REQUIREMENT AND YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT, UNLESS LOCATED WITHIN THE RIGHT-WAY, WHERE YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ARE EXEMPT.

2. ALL ANTENNAS, ASSOCIATED TOWER MOUNTED RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE LOCATED INSIDE THE ALTERNATIVE CONCEALMENT FACILITY OR PAINTED TO MATCH THE STRUCTURE IF ANTENNAS ARE VISIBLE.

3. EQUIPMENT SHALL BE CONCEALED WITHIN THE STRUCTURE, SCREENED BEHIND WALLS, OR BURIED UNDERGROUND. COLORS SHALL MATCH APPROVED CORRIDOR COLORS, OR AS DIRECTED BY ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE.;

4. EQUIPMENT CABINET LOCATIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH THE HEIGHT AND YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS OF THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT;

5. EQUIPMENT CABINETS LOCATED IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL NOT EXCEED EIGHT (8) FEET IN HEIGHT, MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE.

6. ALL EQUIPMENT CABINETS THAT ARE LOCATED WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OR COMPLETELY UNDERGROUND ARE EXEMPT FROM YARD DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS.

- ~~2. Equipment cabinets shall be concealed within the structure, fully screened, or buried underground;~~

- ~~3. Equipment cabinet locations shall comply with the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district;~~

~~4. Equipment cabinets with air-conditioning shall be enclosed by walls and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling; and~~

~~5. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from yard development standards.~~

- D. ~~Type 4~~ **TYPE C** WCF. ~~Type 4 WCF are the least preferred and generally have the most impact on their surrounding environments. All Type 4~~ **TYPE C** WCF shall require **APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT BY THE CITY COUNCIL.** ~~a conditional use permit and are subject to Development Review Board approval (subject to Zoning Ordinance article 1).~~

1. TYPE C WCF SHALL NOT INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

A. SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES AS DEFINED IN A.R.S. 9-591.

B. MICROCELL EQUIPMENT AS DEFINED BY A.R.S 9-584.

12. Type 4 TYPE C WCF include:

A. The following WCF are classified as ~~Type 4~~ **TYPE C** if they do not meet the criteria to be classified as ~~Type 1, 2, or Type 3~~ **A OR B**:

1. WCF located on or within buildings, walls, and water tanks;

2. WCF co-located on existing communication monopoles and towers, **EXISTING OR REPLACED UTILITY POLES AND TOWERS, EXISTING OR REPLACED SPORTS FIELD LIGHT POLES;**

~~3. WCF located on existing or replaced utility poles and towers;~~

~~4. WCF located on existing or replaced sports and field light poles;~~

~~53.~~ WCF located on existing or replaced street light poles, parking light poles, and street sign poles;

~~64.~~ WCF located on existing or replaced traffic signal poles; and

~~75.~~ Alternative concealment WCF.

~~B. WCF concealed within flagpoles (monopoles with a flag).~~

GB. WCF, including both antennas and equipment cabinets, located on lots where the existing primary use is a single-family dwelling and where the lot size is a minimum of five (5) acres, **EXCEPT RANCH OR COMMERCIAL STABLE PROPERTIES.** These WCF shall meet the height and yard development standards of the underlying zoning district, and shall be architecturally integrated into an existing building. No WCF shall be allowed on structures needing additional height allowed in Section 7.100 unless the additional height was built prior to the effective date of this ordinance provision.

~~DC.~~ **NEW** WCF located within the recommended study boundary for the McDowell Sonoran preserve as approved by City Council, except new monopoles or towers.

~~E. The fourth or more separate WCF co-located on any one tower or pole.~~

~~FD.~~ WCF located on utility poles/towers that are planned for removal by the city, utility company, or improvement district.

GE. ~~Communication~~ (WCF) monopoles or towers (new or replacement), ~~not including monopoles with a flag,~~ subject to the following:

~~1. Monopoles or towers on any school property (K-12);~~

- A. ~~Antenna heights shall not exceed eight (8) feet, not to exceed eighty (80) feet in total height (including the antenna).~~

21. NEW Monopoles or towers in the I-1, C-4, and W-P ~~S-S~~ districts:

- A. Height shall not exceed eighty (80) feet including all antennas;
- B. **NEW MONOPOLES OR TOWERS SHALL** ~~Shall~~ be separated from the nearest monopole or tower a minimum distance of one-quarter (¼) mile; and
- C. **NEW** WCF which are located within two hundred (200) feet of a designated arterial or collector street, or within three hundred (300) feet of a R1 zoned property, shall have front and side yard setbacks a minimum of two (2) feet for every one (1) foot in height.
- D. **NEW MONOPOLES OR TOWERS SHALL HAVE A SETBACK FROM THE NEAREST EDGE OF A SCENIC CORRIDOR, VISTA CORRIDOR, ANY LAND ZONED CONSERVATION OPEN SPACE (COS), HILLSIDE CONSERVATION (HC) OR CONSERVATION AREA (CA) A MINIMUM OF THREE (3) FEET FOR EVERY ONE (1) FOOT IN HEIGHT;**
- E. **NEW MONOPOLES OR TOWERS SHALL HAVE A SETBACK FROM LOTS WHERE THE EXISTING OR PLANNED PRIMARY USE IS A SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING A MINIMUM OF THREE (3) FEET FOR EVERY ONE (1) FOOT OF HEIGHT IN HEIGHT.**

~~3. Monopoles or towers in the C-S, C-2, C-3, P.N.C., P.C.C., P.R.C., C-O, PCP, and W-P districts:~~

- ~~A. Height shall not exceed forty (40) feet including all antennas. Monopoles up to fifty (50) feet in height will be allowed in these districts if two (2) providers locate WCF on the pole at the time of final plans approval.~~
- ~~B. Any new monopole or tower shall be separated from the nearest monopole or tower a minimum distance of one-quarter (¼) mile.~~

~~4. Additional setbacks for monopoles and towers.~~

- ~~A. Monopoles or towers shall have a setback from the nearest edge of a scenic corridor, vista corridor or any land zoned open space (O-S), conservation open space (COS), hillside conservation (HC) or conservation area a minimum of three (3) feet for every one (1) foot in height.~~
- ~~B. Monopoles or towers shall have a minimum setback from any ESLO special feature of three hundred (300) feet.~~
- ~~C. Monopoles or towers shall have a setback from lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling a minimum of three (3) feet for every one (1) foot of height.~~

2. ALTERNATIVE CONCEALMENT FACILITY IN EXCESS OF HEIGHT ALLOWED BY UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT- ARTIFICIAL PALM TREE

- A. **THERE SHALL NOT BE MORE THAN ONE CARRIER PER TOWER, MOUNTING ANTENNAS BELOW FRONDS TO TRUNK OR UNDER FAUX PALM THATCH IS PROHIBITED;**

- B. SHALL BE SETBACK PER THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS. THE SETBACK SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE PROPERTY LINE TO THE WIRELESS FACILITY TOWER. ADDITIONALLY, THE TOWER SHALL BE SETBACK FROM ANY SINGLE-FAMILY LOT LINE A DISTANCE EQUAL TO TWICE THE HEIGHT OF THE HEIGHT OF THE TOWER.
 - C. HEIGHT SHALL NOT EXCEED SIXTY (60) FEET TO TOP OF POLE, SIXTY-FIVE (65) FEET TO TOP OF ANTENNAS, AND SEVENTY (70) FEET TO TOP OF FRONDS, MEASURED FROM FINISHED GRADE;
 - D. SHALL CONTAIN A MINIMUM OF SEVENTY (70) FRONDS OF VARYING SIZES THAT DISGUISE THE ANTENNAS AND ASSOCIATED RADIO EQUIPMENT;
 - E. THE DIAMETER OF THE POLE STRUCTURE SHALL NOT EXCEED THIRTY (30) INCHES AT ITS WIDEST POINT;
 - F. THE POLE STRUCTURE SHALL BE CLAD WITH FAUX BARK THAT BEGINS AT THE BASE OF THE POLE STRUCTURE AND CONTINUES TO THE HEIGHT OF THE FIRST PALM FROND ATTACHMENT. THE BALANCE OF THE POLE STRUCTURE, ANTENNAS, RADIO EQUIPMENT AND MOUNTING HARDWARE SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE PALM FRONDS;
 - G. THE STAND-OFF MOUNTING ARM APARATUS OF THE ANTENNA ARRAY WILL NOT EXTEND MORE THAN 30 INCHES FROM THE STRUCTURE TO WHICH IT IS ATTACHED;
 - H. ALL CABLES SHALL BE CONCEALED WITHIN THE POLE STRUCTURE;
 - I. CABLES BOTTOM-FED INTO ANTENNA SHALL BE SCREENED BY A SHROUD ATTACHED TO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNA AND PAINTED TO MATCH ANTENNA;
 - J. ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;
 - K. ANY DAMAGE TO FRONDS AS A RESULT OF INCLEMENT WEATHER, INCLUDING FADING, SHALL BE REPLACED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;
 - L. SHALL BE PLACED IN A LANDSCAPED SETTING WITH OTHER NEARBY PALM TREES;
 - M. SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED IN THE ESL ZONING DISTRICTS OR ON LOTS WHERE THE EXISTING OR PLANNED PRIMARY USE IS SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING.
3. ALTERNATIVE CONCEALMENT FACILITY IN EXCESS OF THE HEIGHT ALLOWED BY THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT – ARTIFICIAL PINE OR BROADLEAF TREE
- A. SHALL BE SETBACK PER THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS. THE SETBACK SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE PROPERTY LINE TO THE WIRELESS FACILITY TOWER. ADDITIONALLY, THE TOWER SHALL BE SETBACK FROM ANY

- SINGLE-FAMILY LOT LINE A DISTANCE EQUAL TO TWICE THE HEIGHT OF THE HEIGHT OF THE TOWER;**
- B. HEIGHT SHALL NOT EXCEED SIXTY (60) FEET TO TOP OF POLE, SIXTY-FIVE (65) FEET TO TOP OF ANTENNAS, AND SEVENTY (70) FEET TO TOP OF TREE;**
 - C. BRANCHES SHALL BE INSTALLED AT A DENSITY OF NO LESS THAN THREE (3) BRANCHES FOR EACH ONE VERTICAL FOOT OF POLE HEIGHT;**
 - D. THE ENTIRE LENGTH OF ALL ANTENNAS AND THEIR ATTACHING APPARATUS SHALL BE DISGUISED BY BRANCHES, AND THE STAND-OFF MOUNTING ARM APPARATUS OF THE ANTENNA ARRAY SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE THAN THIRTY (30) FEET;**
 - E. THE DIAMETER OF THE POLE STRUCTURE SHALL NOT EXCEED THIRTY-SIX (36) INCHES AT ITS WIDEST POINT;**
 - F. THE POLE STRUCTURE WILL BE CLAD WITH FAUX BARK. THE FAUX BARK WILL START AT THE BASE OF THE POLE STRUCTURE AND CONTINUE TO THE HEIGHT OF THE FIRST BRANCH ATTACHMENT. THE BALANCE OF THE POLE STRUCTURE AND THE ATTACHMENTS WILL BE PAINTED TO BLEND WITH THE BRANCHES;**
 - G. ALL CABLES SHALL BE CONCEALED WITHIN THE POLE STRUCTURE;**
 - H. CABLES BOTTOM-FED INTO ANTENNA SHALL BE SCREENED BY A SHROUD ATTACHED TO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNA AND PAINTED TO MATCH ANTENNA;**
 - I. ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;**
 - J. ANY DAMAGE TO BRANCES AS A RESULT OF INCLEMENT WEATHER, INCLUDING FADING, SHALL BE REPLACED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;**
 - K. SHALL BE PLACED IN A LANDSCAPED SETTING;**
 - L. SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED IN THE ESL ZONING DISTRICTS OR ON LOTS WHERE THE EXISTING OR PLANNED PRIMARY USE IS SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING.**
- 4. ALTERNATIVE CONCEALMENT FACILITY IN EXCESS OF THE HEIGHT ALLOWED BY THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT – ARTIFICIAL SAGUARO CACTUS.**
- A. SHALL BE SETBACK PER THE UNDERLYING ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS. THE SETBACK SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE PROPERTY LINE TO THE WIRELESS FACILITY TOWER. ADDITIONALLY, THE TOWER SHALL BE SETBACK FROM ANY SINGLE-FAMILY LOT LINE A**

DISTANCE EQUAL TO TWICE THE HEIGHT OF THE HEIGHT OF THE TOWER;

B. HEIGHT SHALL NOT EXCEED THIRTY-SIX (36) FEET ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

C. DIAMETER SHALL NOT EXCEED THIRTY-FOUR (34) INCHES AT ITS WIDEST POINT AND SHALL HAVE A NATURAL APPEARING TAPER FROM THE BOTTOM TO TOP.

D. ALL CABLES SHALL BE CONCEALED WITHIN THE POLE STRUCTURE;

E. CABLES BOTTOM-FED INTO ANTENNA SHALL BE SCREENED BY A SHROUD ATTACHED TO THE BOTTOM OF THE ANTENNA AND PAINTED TO MATCH ANTENNA;

F. ANTENNA PIPE MOUNTS SHALL BE TRIMMED TO MATCH THE HEIGHT OF THE ANTENNAS;

G. ANY DAMAGE AS A RESULT OF INCLEMENT WEATHER, INCLUDING FADING, SHALL BE REPLACED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR OR DESIGNEE;

H. SHALL BE PLACED IN A LANDSCAPED SETTING;

I. SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED ON LOTS WHERE THE EXISTING OR PLANNED PRIMARY USE IS SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING.

~~H. Type 4 equipment cabinets. Equipment cabinets for all type 4 WCF shall be located inside buildings/structures, screened behind walls, pole mounted, or buried underground. All equipment cabinets that are located within the right-of-way or completely underground are exempt from these setback requirements. However, all equipment cabinets with air conditioning shall be enclosed and setback a minimum of fifteen (15) feet from other lots where the existing or planned primary use is a single-family dwelling.~~

9. *WCF submittal requirements.* Applicants proposing WCF (Types 1, 2, 3, or **4A, B and C**) shall submit the following:

A. All WCF:

~~1. A written report verifying that, at its maximum load, including cumulative effects of multiple facilities, the WCF meets or exceeds the Federal Communication Commission's radio frequency safety standards. Submission of this report is required before communication operations can begin, before any extension periods are granted, and before the city's acceptance of any improvements or upgrades to the WCF;~~

1. **A PROJECT NARRATIVE DESCRIBING THE REQUEST AND EFFORTS MADE TO MINIMIZE THE VISUAL LIMPACT OF THE ANTENNAS AND EQUIPMENT CABINETS. IF A TYPE C FACILITY, ADDRESS THE WCF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT IN THE NARRATIVE.**

2. A map of the service area for the WCF;

~~3. A map that shows other existing or planned WCF that will be used by the WCF provider who is making the application. Describe the height, mounting style, and number of antennas on each WCF;~~

43. Photo documentation of existing conditions;
 54. ~~A photo simulation~~ **PHOTO SIMULATIONS OF THE WCF TAKEN UP CLOSE, TAKEN FROM THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO THE SITE, AND TAKEN FROM THE NEAREST RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY. SUCH PHOTO SIMULATION SHALL INCLUDE, BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO SUPERIMPOSED REPRESENTATIONS OF THE PROPOSED BASE STATION AND TOWER. (except for type 1 WCF);**
 - ~~6. A concealment and screening plan showing the WCF blending with the existing environment;~~
 - ~~7. Written description of efforts to minimize the visual impact of the antennas and equipment cabinets;~~
 - ~~8. A site line representation drawing;~~
 - ~~9. Community notification documentation, including the names and dates (notification shall be a minimum fifteen (15) days prior to application submittal); and~~
 - ~~10. Written description of conformance with applicable design guidelines and use permit criteria.~~
- B. New towers and monopoles ~~(including monopoles with flags):~~
1. A map that shows any WCF monopoles or towers, ~~and monopoles with flags~~, within a mile radius of the project that are existing or are currently under construction;
 2. Written description of any efforts to co-locate the proposed WCF on another site or building. Include a map of the sites and provide engineering information or letters from the owners of the site describing why co-location is not a possibility;
 3. A map that shows other potential stand-alone locations for the proposed WCF that have been explored. Describe why the proposed location is superior to other potential locations. Factors to consider in the community perspective shall include: costs, visual aspects, setbacks, and proximity to single family residences;
 4. Written description of efforts to blend the WCF with the surrounding area, including the process for arriving at the color and materials for the proposed monopole or tower;
 5. Written description of efforts to minimize the diameter of the monopole and the mass of the tower supporting the proposed WCF. Provide engineering/structural information related to these efforts; and
 6. Written description of all equipment that will be ancillary to the antennas, such as whip and dish antennas. Describe the function of this ancillary equipment and the need to locate it on this WCF.
- ~~C. Properties within the environmentally sensitive lands (ESL) district:~~
- ~~1. Photo simulations taken from the closest streets and single family residences surrounding the proposed site;~~
 - ~~2. Color samples and their light reflective values; and~~
 - ~~3. Written analysis describing the most effective way to screen or blend the new WCF with the surrounding environment.~~
- DC. All NEW WCF** located on school properties (K—12) shall provide a letter demonstrating that the parents of the students and the surrounding neighbors were properly noticed of the proposed WCF (letters sent out, dates and times of public meetings, list of attendees, and minutes of meeting).

The Zoning Administrator may require additional information or may waive submittal requirements determined unnecessary for appropriate review of the project.

10. *Community notification.* For all **NEW** WCF applications, the applicant shall provide written notice to residences, businesses, schools, and public facilities **PROPERTY OWNERS** within seven hundred fifty (750) feet of the proposed WCF. All notices shall include a request that the recipient post and distribute the notice to all tenants, employees, and students.

~~11. *Continued monitoring.* Every three (3) years, each wireless communications service provider shall submit to the city a written report verifying that, at its maximum load, including cumulative effects of multiple facilities, each WCF was tested and certified to meet or exceed the Federal Communication Commission's radio frequency safety standards. The three (3) years shall be from the most recent approval of the respective WCF or from the effective date of this ordinance, whichever is earlier, and every three (3) years thereafter.~~

~~12. *Third party review.* The Zoning Administrator may require a third party review of the technical data submitted by the provider, to be paid for by the applicant. Selection of the third party expert may be by mutual agreement among the applicant and interested parties or at the discretion of the city, with a provision for the applicant and interested parties to comment on the proposed expert(s) and to review qualifications.~~

~~The expert review is intended to be a site-specific review of technical aspects of the wireless communications service WCF and not a subjective review of the site selection. Such a review shall address the accuracy and completeness of the technical data, whether the analysis techniques and methodologies are legitimate, the validity of the conclusions and any specific technical issues outlined by the City Council, Planning Commission, the Zoning Administrator, or interested parties.~~

~~The expert review of technical submission shall address the following:~~

~~A. The accuracy and completeness of submissions;~~

~~B. The applicability of analysis techniques and methodologies;~~

~~C. The validity of conclusions reached; and~~

~~D. Any specific technical issues designated by the city council or planning commission.~~

~~13~~11. *Abandonment.* WCF which are not in use for six (6) or more months shall be removed by the wireless communications service provider or the property owner. This removal shall occur within ninety (90) days of the end of such six-month period. Upon removal, the site shall be revegetated to blend with the surrounding vegetation.